

**PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE
STATE BOARD OF HEALTH**

LCB File No. R145-23

January 23, 2024

EXPLANATION – Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets ~~omitted material~~ is material to be omitted.

AUTHORITY: §§ 1 and 4, NRS 439.200, 652.090 and 652.130; §§ 2 and 3, NRS 439.200 and 652.130; §§ 5-8, 10-17 and 20, NRS 439.200, 652.125 and 652.130; § 9, NRS 439.200, 652.125 and 652.130, as amended by section 29 of Assembly Bill No. 432, chapter 230, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 1462; §§ 18 and 19, NRS 439.200 and 652.125.

A REGULATION relating to medical laboratories; revising the procedure to apply for the issuance or renewal of certain licenses, registrations, permits and certifications; revising the required qualifications of certain laboratory personnel; revising provisions governing the temporary employment of certain laboratory personnel; revising provisions governing office laboratory assistants; repealing certain requirements governing programs of training for certification as a technician; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel’s Digest:

Existing law: (1) requires the State Board of Health to adopt regulations carrying out provisions governing the requirements for an application for a license to operate a medical laboratory; and (2) authorizes the Board to adopt regulations for the certification and licensure of laboratory directors and certain laboratory personnel. (NRS 652.090. 652.130) Existing law also exempts certain laboratories operated by licensed physicians from requirements governing medical laboratories if those exempt laboratories register with the Division of Public and Behavioral Health of the Department of Health and Human Services and comply with certain other requirements. (NRS 652.072) Existing regulations require a licensed laboratory that wishes to collect specimens or perform tests, or both, at a location other than the location set forth in its license to obtain a permit from the Division. (NAC 652.195) **Sections 1-6, 13 and 17-19** of this regulation remove the requirement that an application for the issuance or renewal of such a certificate, license, registration or permit be submitted on a form provided by the Division and instead require such an application to be made in the form prescribed by the Division. **Section 15** of this regulation similarly replaces references to a form for the renewal of certification as laboratory personnel with references to an application for the renewal of such certification. **Section 15** accordingly replaces a requirement that the Division provide that form to the holder

of such certification not less than 90 days before the expiration of the certificate with a requirement that the Division notify the holder of the impending expiration of the certificate.

Existing law requires that regulations adopted by the Board that require the directors of laboratories that perform only certain tests to be licensed physicians must include licensed optometrists among such physicians. (NRS 652.130, as amended by section 29 of Assembly Bill No. 432, chapter 230, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 1462) **Section 9** of this regulation provides that a licensed optometrist may serve as the director of a laboratory that performs only such tests or provider-performed microscopy procedures.

Sections 10, 11 and 16 of this regulation revise the qualifications for certification as a histotechnologist, a histologic technician and a technologist, respectively, in a manner that expands the persons eligible for such certification. **Section 12** of this regulation corrects a typographical error.

Existing regulations generally require the technical personnel of a laboratory to be certified by the Division. However, existing regulations authorize a laboratory to temporarily employ uncertified personnel for not more than 12 months while an application for certification is being processed. (NAC 652.470) **Section 13**: (1) revises the length of such a period of temporary employment to not more than 6 months while the application is being processed; and (2) authorizes an additional period of temporary employment for not more than 30 days after an application has been reviewed and the Division has requested additional information from the applicant. **Section 13** also revises the date by which substantiating documents for an application for certification as laboratory personnel must be submitted.

Existing regulations generally require any technical personnel newly employed in a laboratory which only performs tests on patients of a particular physician and the partner and associates of his or her private practice to be certified as at least an office laboratory assistant. However, existing regulations authorize a person who does not hold such certification to serve as an office laboratory trainee for not more than 6 months. (NAC 652.472) **Section 14** of this regulation removes such authorization, thereby requiring any person newly employed in such a laboratory to be certified as at least an office laboratory assistant. **Section 14** also: (1) requires the laboratory director of such a laboratory to ensure that an office laboratory assistant performing certain testing is appropriately trained and educated; and (2) requires an office laboratory assistant performing certain testing to possess the qualifications required by certain federal regulations.

Section 20 of this regulation repeals a requirement that a program of training intended to prepare a person for certification be approved by the Division. **Sections 7 and 8** of this regulation make conforming changes to remove references to the repealed section. **Sections 7, 8, 10 and 11** update the names of certain organizations. **Sections 18 and 19** of this regulation correct certain references to sections of the Nevada Administrative Code.

Section 1. NAC 652.170 is hereby amended to read as follows:

652.170 1. An application for a license or registration for a laboratory must be made ~~ten~~ *in the* form ~~provided~~ *prescribed* by the Division. Upon receipt of a completed application, the Division shall conduct an inspection of the facility which may include an examination of the

policies and procedures of the laboratory to determine whether the laboratory is in substantial compliance with this chapter for the procedures for testing that the laboratory desires to provide.

2. The Division shall notify the applicant of the disposition of the application within 30 days after receipt of the application.

3. The laboratory director shall include at least one of the following forms of proof of identity with the application:

(a) An electronic signature;

(b) A notarized statement;

(c) A copy of a form of government-issued identification, which may include, without limitation, a driver's license, passport, identification card issued by the Department of Motor Vehicles or other government-issued identification acceptable to the Division; or

(d) Other proof of identity acceptable to the Division.

4. As used in this section, "electronic signature" means a user name attached to or logically associated with a record and executed or adopted by an applicant with the intent to sign an electronic application or other document.

Sec. 2. NAC 652.175 is hereby amended to read as follows:

652.175 1. A laboratory operated by a licensed physician pursuant to NRS 652.072 must register with the Division as an exempt laboratory or a nonexempt laboratory.

2. A laboratory operated by a licensed physician pursuant to NRS 652.072 may register with the Division as an exempt laboratory if:

(a) The operating physician submits an application for registration as an exempt laboratory ~~in a~~ *in the* form ~~provided~~ *prescribed* by the Division;

(b) The operating physician pays the applicable fees set forth in NAC 652.488;

(c) Each test performed by personnel other than the physician has been classified as a waived test pursuant to 42 C.F.R. Part 493, Subpart A; and

(d) Either:

(1) The operating physician performs tests on his or her own patients and makes his or her own readings of the results of the tests; or

(2) Any manipulation of a person for the collection of a specimen is made by an employee of the laboratory who is qualified pursuant to NRS 652.210.

3. A laboratory operated by a licensed physician pursuant to NRS 652.072 may register with the Division as a nonexempt laboratory if:

(a) The operating physician submits an application for registration as a nonexempt laboratory ~~on a~~ *in the* form ~~provided~~ *prescribed* by the Division;

(b) The operating physician is licensed as a director and pays the applicable fees set forth in NAC 652.488;

(c) At least some tests performed by personnel other than the physician have not been classified as waived tests pursuant to 42 C.F.R. Part 493, Subpart A; and

(d) Either:

(1) The operating physician or an employee of the laboratory performs tests on the patients of the physician and the physician or the employee of the laboratory makes his or her own readings of the results of the tests; or

(2) Any manipulation of a person for the collection of a specimen is made by an employee of the laboratory who is qualified pursuant to NRS 652.210.

4. As used in this section, “licensed physician” includes:

(a) A physician licensed as a doctor of medicine pursuant to chapter 630 of NRS;

- (b) A physician licensed as a doctor of osteopathic medicine pursuant to chapter 633 of NRS;
- (c) A chiropractic physician licensed pursuant to chapter 634 of NRS; and
- (d) A podiatric physician licensed pursuant to chapter 635 of NRS.

Sec. 3. NAC 652.180 is hereby amended to read as follows:

652.180 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, the Division shall issue a certificate of registration to each laboratory which registers with the Division pursuant to NRS 652.072. A certificate of registration issued pursuant to this section is effective for 2 years after the date of issuance.

2. The Division may issue one certificate of registration for any number of laboratories which test specimens to protect the public health if each laboratory:

- (a) Is supervised by the Division or a health district; and
- (b) Performs at least 1 but not more than 15 tests which are classified pursuant to 42 C.F.R.

Part 493, Subpart A, as moderate complexity tests or waived tests.

3. An application for renewal of a certificate must be ~~on a~~ *in the* form ~~provided~~ *prescribed* by the Division.

4. The failure to apply for renewal within 30 days after a certificate expires will result in termination of the laboratory's authority to operate in this State.

5. Upon acceptance of an application for renewal, the Division shall provide the laboratory with a new certificate of registration.

Sec. 4. NAC 652.195 is hereby amended to read as follows:

652.195 1. A licensed laboratory that wishes to collect specimens or perform tests, or both, at a location other than the location set forth in its license must obtain a permit to operate a laboratory at a temporary location.

2. An application for a permit to operate a laboratory at a temporary location must be:

- (a) Made ~~on a~~ *in the* form ~~provided~~ *prescribed* by the Division;
- (b) Submitted to the Division in the manner set forth in NAC 652.170; and
- (c) Accompanied by the fee set forth in NAC 652.488.

3. The Division shall notify an applicant of the disposition of an application within 30 days after receipt of a completed application.

4. A permit to operate a laboratory at a temporary location issued pursuant to this section expires 90 days after the effective date of the permit.

Sec. 5. NAC 652.200 is hereby amended to read as follows:

652.200 An application for a license as a director must be ~~on a~~ *in the* form ~~provided~~ *prescribed* by the Division, giving complete information as indicated, including educational background, experience and the identity of the laboratory to be directed.

Sec. 6. NAC 652.230 is hereby amended to read as follows:

652.230 1. An application for renewal of a license as a director must be:

- (a) Made ~~on a~~ *in the* form ~~provided~~ *prescribed* by the Division; and
- (b) Accompanied by the appropriate fee for renewal.

2. The failure to apply for renewal within 30 days after a license expires will result in termination of the licensee's authority to act as a director in this State.

Sec. 7. NAC 652.380 is hereby amended to read as follows:

652.380 Except as otherwise provided in NAC 652.383, to qualify for a license as a director of a licensed laboratory, a person must meet one of the following qualifications:

1. Be a physician who is licensed to practice medicine in this State and:

- (a) Be certified in anatomical and clinical pathology, or in clinical pathology, by:

- (1) The American Board of Pathology; or
 - (2) The American Osteopathic Board of Pathology;
- (b) Possess qualifications which are equivalent to those required for certification by either of the institutions listed in paragraph (a);
- (c) Within the 10 years immediately preceding application for a license, have successfully completed a 4-year program accredited by the National Accrediting Agency for Clinical Laboratory Sciences;
- (d) Be certified, in accordance with NAC 652.410, as a general supervisor; or
- (e) Have at least 4 years of experience as a technologist:
- (1) In a licensed laboratory or a laboratory of a hospital, health department or university;
 - (2) As a full-time employee working at least 30 hours per week; and
 - (3) Under the supervision of a director who possesses a doctoral degree.
2. Hold an earned doctoral degree from an accredited institution, with a chemical, physical, biological or clinical laboratory science as the major, have at least 1 year of experience directing or supervising laboratory testing or performing laboratory testing at the level of a technologist in a laboratory which meets the requirements of NAC 652.170 to ~~652.600~~, **652.590**, inclusive, and sections 3, 4 and 5 of LCB File No. 126-21, and:
- (a) Be certified by:
- (1) The American Board of Medical Microbiology;
 - (2) The American Board of Clinical Chemistry;
 - (3) The American Board of Bioanalysis;
 - (4) The American Board of Medical Laboratory Immunology;
 - (5) The American Board of Forensic Toxicology;

- (6) The American Board of Medical Genetics and Genomics;
- (7) The National Registry of Certified Chemists;
- (8) The American ~~Board of~~ *Society for* Histocompatibility and Immunogenetics; or
- (9) Any other institution approved by the United States Department of Health and Human Services in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 493.1443(b)(3); or

(b) Possess qualifications which are equivalent to those required for certification by any of the institutions listed in paragraph (a).

Sec. 8. NAC 652.395 is hereby amended to read as follows:

652.395 To qualify for a license as a director of a registered laboratory, a person must:

1. Be a physician licensed to practice in this State and have:
 - (a) At least 1 year of experience directing or supervising laboratory testing in a laboratory which meets the requirements of NAC 652.170 to ~~652.600,~~ *652.590*, inclusive, and sections 3, 4 and 5 of LCB File No. R126-21;
 - (b) Credit for at least 20 hours of continuing medical education in laboratory practice regarding the responsibilities of a director; or
 - (c) Laboratory training, obtained during medical residency, equivalent to the training required by paragraph (b); or
2. Hold an earned doctoral degree from an accredited institution, with a major in chemical, physical, biological or clinical laboratory science, and:
 - (a) Have at least 1 year of experience directing or supervising laboratory testing or performing laboratory testing at the level of a technologist in a laboratory which meets the requirements of NAC 652.170 to ~~652.600,~~ *652.590*, inclusive, and sections 3, 4 and 5 of LCB File No. R126-21;

(b) Be certified by:

- (1) The American Board of Medical Microbiology;
- (2) The American Board of Bioanalysis;
- (3) The American Board of Medical Laboratory Immunology;
- (4) The American Board of Clinical Chemistry;
- (5) The American Board of Forensic Toxicology;
- (6) The American Board of Medical Genetics and Genomics;
- (7) The National Registry of Certified Chemists;
- (8) The American ~~Board of~~ *Society for* Histocompatibility and Immunogenetics; or
- (9) Any other institution approved by the United States Department of Health and Human

Services in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 493.1443(b)(3); or

(c) Possess qualifications which are equivalent to those required for certification by any of the institutions listed in paragraph (b).

Sec. 9. NAC 652.397 is hereby amended to read as follows:

652.397 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2 and NAC 652.395, to qualify to serve as a director of an exempt laboratory or a licensed laboratory only for the collection of specimens, a person must be:

- (a) A licensed physician;
- (b) Qualified for a license as a director of a licensed laboratory pursuant to NAC 652.380;
- (c) Qualified for a license as a director of a registered laboratory pursuant to NAC 652.395;
- (d) An advanced practice registered nurse licensed pursuant to chapter 632 of NRS;
- (e) A physician assistant licensed pursuant to chapter 630 or 633 of NRS;
- (f) A general supervisor of a licensed laboratory certified in accordance with NAC 652.410;

(g) A clinical laboratory technologist certified in accordance with NAC 652.420; ~~or~~

(h) A dentist licensed pursuant to chapter 631 of NRS ~~H~~; *or*

(i) An optometrist licensed pursuant to chapter 636 of NRS.

2. To qualify to serve as a director of an exempt laboratory in which the only tests performed are glucose tests that are classified as waived tests pursuant to 42 C.F.R. Part 493, Subpart A, a person must be:

(a) A person identified in subsection 1;

(b) A nurse licensed pursuant to chapter 632 of NRS;

(c) A pharmacist registered pursuant to chapter 639 of NRS; or

(d) A person licensed or certified pursuant to chapter 652 of NRS, other than a certified blood-gas assistant, certified laboratory assistant or certified office laboratory assistant.

3. As used in this section, “licensed physician” includes:

(a) A physician licensed as a doctor of medicine pursuant to chapter 630 of NRS;

(b) A physician licensed as a doctor of osteopathic medicine pursuant to chapter 633 of NRS;

(c) A chiropractic physician licensed pursuant to chapter 634 of NRS; and

(d) A podiatric physician licensed pursuant to chapter 635 of NRS.

Sec. 10. NAC 652.433 is hereby amended to read as follows:

652.433 1. To qualify for a certificate as a histotechnologist, a person must have:

(a) A baccalaureate degree from an accredited college or university with at least 32 semester hours in science, of which 12 hours are in chemistry and 16 hours are in the areas of general biology, histology, zoology, anatomy and physiology, and 1 year of experience in a histopathology laboratory under the supervision of a pathologist certified by the American Board

of Pathology ~~and Anatomic Pathology~~ or a pathologist eligible to be certified in anatomic pathology;

(b) A baccalaureate degree from an accredited college or university, including the semester hours required in paragraph (a), and successfully completed ~~an~~ *an accredited* program ~~on~~ *in* histotechnology ; ~~certified by the Committee on Allied Health Education and Accreditation;~~ or

(c) National certification as a histotechnologist and 8 years of full-time experience before August 1980, in an approved histopathology laboratory.

2. A histotechnologist may perform only those procedures, under the minimal review of the director or general supervisor, for which he or she has adequate education, training and experience and in which he or she has demonstrated a proficiency. The histotechnologist may supervise the work of histologic technicians and assistants.

Sec. 11. NAC 652.437 is hereby amended to read as follows:

652.437 1. To qualify for a certificate as a histologic technician, a person must:

(a) Successfully complete ~~an~~ *an accredited* program in histotechnology ; ~~certified by the Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Education Programs;~~

(b) Have an associate degree in chemistry, biology or a physical science or successfully complete at least 60 semester hours or the equivalent of academic credit from an accredited college or university with at least 12 semester hours in science, of which 6 hours are in chemistry and 6 hours are in biology, and have 1 year of full-time experience in histotechnology in a histology laboratory under the supervision of a pathologist certified in anatomic pathology by the American Board of Pathology ~~Incorporated~~ or a pathologist eligible for certification in anatomic pathology; ~~or~~

(c) Be a high school graduate or the equivalent and have 2 years of full-time experience in histotechnology, within the preceding 5 years, in a histology laboratory under the supervision of a pathologist certified in anatomic pathology by the American Board of Pathology ~~incorporated~~ or a pathologist eligible for certification in anatomic pathology ~~+~~; *or*

(d) Have a national certification as a histologic technician.

2. A histologic technician may only perform histologic procedures under the supervision of a histotechnologist or the director and may only perform cytologic procedures under the direction of a cytotechnologist, a histotechnologist or the director.

Sec. 12. NAC 652.440 is hereby amended to read as follows:

652.440 1. A medical technician may perform a test only if the test is classified pursuant to 42 C.F.R. Part 493, Subpart A, as:

(a) A waived test;

(b) A moderate complexity test; or

(c) A high complexity test, and:

(1) The results of the test are read directly from an instrument; and

(2) The test requires no interpretation and no intervention by the operator of the test

during its analytic phase.

2. To be certified as a medical technician, a person must pass a national examination for certification and must:

(a) Have an associate degree from an accredited institution as a medical technician or have successfully completed a program based on a course of study that includes chemistry, biology and a ~~structural~~ *structured* curriculum in techniques used in a laboratory;

(b) Have successfully completed 60 semester hours of academic credit, including chemistry, biology and a structured curriculum in techniques used in a laboratory, at an accredited institution;

(c) Be a high school graduate or the equivalent, have completed at least 1 year in a program for training technicians approved by the Board and have 3 years of experience in a laboratory within the preceding 5 years; or

(d) Be a high school graduate or the equivalent, have successfully completed an official 50-week course in procedures for a military laboratory and have been a medical laboratory specialist or laboratory technician in the military.

Sec. 13. NAC 652.470 is hereby amended to read as follows:

652.470 1. Before working in a laboratory at any technical level ~~†~~

~~—(a) An~~, *an* application for certification must be made ~~{on a}~~ *in the* form ~~{provided}~~ *prescribed* by the Division giving information on the applicant's educational background. ~~†~~

~~—(b)†~~ Substantiating documents such as college or other academic transcripts or copies of certificates of registration should accompany the application, but must be submitted within ~~†6~~ ~~months†~~ *90 days* after the date of the application. ~~†~~

~~—(c)†~~ The ~~{form}~~ *application* must indicate the level and title for which certification is desired. ~~†~~ ~~and~~

~~—(d)†~~ The fee prescribed in NAC 652.488 must accompany the application.

2. Temporary employment may be granted:

(a) For a period not exceeding ~~†12†~~:

(1) Six months while the application is being processed; ~~†or†~~ *and*

(2) An additional 30 days after the Division has reviewed an application and requested additional information from the applicant; or

(b) If the applicant has been issued a provisional certificate, until the expiration of the provisional certificate.

3. The Division shall issue the appropriate certificate on behalf of the Board when it is determined that all requirements for certification are satisfied.

4. A person may upgrade his or her certificate after completing the appropriate additional experience, training or academic requirements, or any combination thereof, by applying to the Division pursuant to subsection 1.

5. A person whose certification has lapsed for more than 5 years may reapply for certification by submitting an original application to the Division accompanied by the fee prescribed in NAC 652.488.

6. A person whose certification has lapsed for 5 years or less may reapply for certification by submitting an application for reinstatement to the Division accompanied by the fee prescribed in NAC 652.488.

7. A certificate will be placed in an inactive status upon the approval of the Division and payment of the fee prescribed in NAC 652.488.

Sec. 14. NAC 652.472 is hereby amended to read as follows:

652.472 *1.* Technical personnel newly employed in a private registered laboratory must be certified as at least an office laboratory assistant. ~~If the person requires training to reach that level, the prospective assistant must apply as an office laboratory trainee and perform those duties for not more than 6 months. Upon the recommendation of the office operator, the trainee shall formally apply for certification as an office laboratory assistant.~~

2. An office laboratory assistant who performs:

(a) Moderate complexity testing must meet the requirements of 42 C.F.R. § 493.1423.

(b) High complexity testing must meet the requirements of 42 C.F.R. § 493.1489.

3. The director of a laboratory where an office laboratory assistant performs moderate complexity testing or high complexity testing shall ensure that the office laboratory assistant meets the requirements of subsection 2.

Sec. 15. NAC 652.476 is hereby amended to read as follows:

652.476 1. A person certified pursuant to NAC 652.470 who wishes to renew the certification must submit to the Division a completed ~~{form}~~ **application** for renewal. The Division shall, not less than 90 days before the expiration of the certificate, provide to the holder of the certificate ~~{the proper form for renewal.}~~ **notice of:**

(a) The date on which the certificate expires; and

(b) The need to renew the certificate.

2. The ~~{form}~~ **application** for renewal must include a request for information regarding the current residence of the person holding the certificate.

3. The ~~{form}~~ **application** for renewal must be accompanied by the fee for renewal.

4. A certificate issued pursuant to this section is effective for 2 years after the date of issuance. Failure to apply for renewal within 30 days after the certificate expires will result in the termination of the holder's authority to work in a laboratory at a technical level.

Sec. 16. NAC 652.478 is hereby amended to read as follows:

652.478 A technologist may:

1. Be certified:

(a) In chemistry;

- (b) In microbiology;
- (c) In hematology;
- (d) In immunology;
- (e) In immunohematology;
- (f) In nuclear medicine;
- (g) In histocompatibility;
- (h) In histology;
- (i) In cytology;
- (j) As a biotechnologist; ~~or~~
- (k) *In molecular biology; or*
- (l) In more than one of the specialties set forth in this subsection.*

2. Perform a test in a specialty only if certified in that specialty.

Sec. 17. NAC 652.486 is hereby amended to read as follows:

652.486 1. The Division shall issue a provisional certificate to a technologist or technician who is otherwise qualified for a certificate if he or she has not yet:

(a) Passed a required national examination for certification, but has been accepted as a candidate for testing; or

(b) Accumulated the amount of experience or training required for certification.

2. A technologist or technician must apply for a provisional certificate ~~on a~~ *in the* form ~~provided~~ *prescribed* by the Division and pay the fee for initial certification of personnel set forth in NAC 652.488.

3. A provisional certificate issued pursuant to this section expires 18 months after the date of issue and is not renewable.

Sec. 18. Section 2 of LCB File No. R090-18 is hereby amended to read as follows:

1. To apply for an initial license as a director by endorsement, an applicant who holds a valid, unrestricted license as a director in the District of Columbia or any state or territory of the United States which required the applicant to pass a background check and included the submission of fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of Investigation as a condition for obtaining that license must submit to the Division an application ~~form~~ *in the* form prescribed by the Division.

The application must be accompanied by:

- (a) Proof that the applicant has achieved a passing score on a nationally recognized examination for licensure as a director.
- (b) An attestation, under penalty of perjury, that he or she meets the requirements prescribed in paragraphs (a) to (e), inclusive, of subsection 2 of NRS 622.530.
- (c) Payment of the fee prescribed for initial licensure of a director who is not licensed by endorsement prescribed by paragraph ~~(d)~~ (e) of subsection 1 of NAC 652.488.
- (d) Proof of the valid, unrestricted license as a director in the District of Columbia or any state or territory of the United States including, without limitation, the name of the regulatory authority that issued the license and the number of the license.
- (e) The statement required by NRS 425.520.

2. The Division may request such additional documentation from an applicant as it deems necessary to ensure the provisions of this section and NRS 622.530 are met.

Sec. 19. Section 3 of LCB File No. R090-18 is hereby amended to read as follows:

1. To apply for an initial certificate as laboratory personnel by endorsement, an applicant who holds a valid, unrestricted certificate as laboratory personnel for a comparable type of laboratory personnel in the District of Columbia or any state or territory of the United States

which required the applicant to pass a background check and included the submission of fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of Investigation as a condition for obtaining that certificate must submit to the Division an application ~~form~~ *in the* form prescribed by the Division. The application must be accompanied by:

(a) Proof that the applicant has achieved a passing score on a nationally recognized examination for certification as laboratory personnel for the applicable type of laboratory personnel.

(b) An attestation, under penalty of perjury, that he or she meets the requirements prescribed in paragraphs (a) to (e), inclusive, of subsection 2 of NRS 622.530.

(c) Payment of the applicable fee prescribed for initial certification of personnel who are not certified by endorsement prescribed by paragraph ~~(e)~~ *(h)* of subsection 1 of NAC 652.488.

(d) Proof of the valid, unrestricted certificate as laboratory personnel in the District of Columbia or any state or territory of the United States including, without limitation, the name of the regulatory authority that issued the certificate and the number of the certificate.

(e) The statement required by NRS 425.520.

2. The Division may request such additional documentation from an applicant as it deems necessary to ensure the provisions of this section and NRS 622.530 are met.

Sec. 20. NAC 652.600 is hereby repealed.

TEXT OF REPEALED SECTION

652.600 Program of training for certification as technician. (NRS 439.200, 652.123, 652.125, 652.130)

1. Any program of training intended to prepare a person for certification as a technician must be approved by the Division. Application for approval must be submitted to the Division in the manner prescribed by the Division. The application must include:

- (a) A description of the goals of the program;
- (b) A description of the methods of instruction;
- (c) A description of the contents of the courses;
- (d) A description of the qualifications of the instructors;
- (e) A description of the methods of evaluating the performance of the trainee; and
- (f) The name of the director who is responsible for the program.

2. The director shall certify in writing to the Division each trainee who has successfully completed the program.